
 

 

 
FRANKLIN CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD  
FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

 
 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday, December 19, 2024 at 6:00 P.M. 

 
A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 
B. Approval of Minutes 

 
1. Approval of the regular meeting of December 5, 2024. 

 
C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

1. Plan Commission Membership, UDO Text Amendment. An ordinance to amend §15-
10.0102 Membership, of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to change the Plan 
Commission membership to remove the City Engineer member and in place thereof provide an 
alderperson to serve on the Plan Commission (City of Franklin, applicant). 

2. Developer’s Deposit Definition, UDO Text Amendment. An ordinance to amend the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) to define “Developer’s deposit” in Section 15-11.0103 
Specific words and phrases (City of Franklin, applicant). 

 
D. Citizen comment period. Citizens may comment upon the Business Matter items set forth on this 

Meeting Agenda. 
 

E. Business Matters  

1. Gilewski, Miscellaneous. Request for approval to allow for the installation of a fence within 
the 30-foot Private Planting Screen upon Lot 16 in Block 8 of the Southwood East Subdivision, 
on property located at 3651 W Sherwood Drive (879 0275 000). 

2. Anhalt, Miscellaneous. Request for approval to allow for the installation of a shed within the 
30-foot Private Planting Screen upon Lot 2 in Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision, on 
property located at 4107 W Barnwood Court (880 0021 000). 
 

F. Adjournment 

 
The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will live stream the Plan Commission meeting so the public can watch and listen to it at 
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov. Any questions on this agenda may be directed to the Department of City 
Development’s office at 414-425-4024, Monday through Friday, 8 AM – 4:30 PM. 
*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during regular business hours. 

 
**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over 
which they have decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. 
Greendale Village Board, even though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 
 
[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 
services. For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at 414- 425-7500.] 
 
REMINDERS: Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: January 9, 2025. 



  

 

City of Franklin unapproved 

Plan Commission Meeting 

December 5, 2024 

Minutes 

 

      A.  Call to Order and Roll Call 

Mayor John Nelson called the December 5, 2024 Plan Commission meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

in the Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin.  

 

Present were Mayor John Nelson, Alderwoman Courtney Day, Commissioners Kevin Haley, 

Patrick Leon, Michael Shawgo and Rebecca Specht. Also present were City Attorney Jesse 

Wesolowski, Planning Manager Régulo Martínez-Montilva, Planning Intern David Serna-Herrera, 

Director of Administration Kelly Hersh and Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann. 

 

B.  Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of November 21, 2024 

 Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Shawgo seconded a motion to approve the 

November 21, 2024 meeting minutes. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-0). 

 

C.  Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1.   Kent, Area Exception. Request for approval of an Area Exception to allow for a lot coverage 

increase for the installation of an inground swimming pool, upon property located 6575 W 

River Pointe Drive (TKN 851 0022 000). 

 

Planning Manager Martínez presented the Area Exception request. Applicants Crystal Kent 

and Keith Kent were present. 

 

The Official Notice of Public Hearing was read in to the record by Planning Manager Martínez 

and the Public Hearing opened at 6:06 pm and closed at 6:06 pm.  

 

  Commissioner Leon moved and Alderwoman Day seconded a motion to recommend approval 

of an application for an area exception to allow for a maximum lot coverage of 18% (4,029 

square feet), exceeding the maximum lot coverage standard of 15% in the R-3 Suburban/Estate 

Single-Family Residence District to allow for the installation of an inground swimming pool, 

for property located at 6575 W River Pointe Drive (Crystal & Keith Kent, Applicants and 

Property Owners), with the conditions of approval suggested by the Engineering Department: 

1) The applicant is responsible for submitting a letter of approval from the Home Owners 

Association, 2) Access from Puetz Road will need a right-of-way, they applicant may obtain 

such permit from the Engineering Department if needed. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion 

carried (5-0-0). 

 

  D.  Citizen comment period. Citizens may comment upon the Business Matter items set forth on 

this meeting agenda. 

 

The citizen comment period opened at 6:11 p.m. and closed at 6:11 p.m. 

 

 E.   Business Matters 

 

 1.  Carma, Site Plan Amendment. Request for approval of a Site Plan Amendment to allow for 

changes to the approved Site Plan including addition of carport canopies, parking changes, and 



  

 

landscape and lighting plan modifications on property located at 9410 S 76th  St. (884 9997 

000). 

 

Planning Intern Serna presented the Site Plan Amendment request. 

 

 Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to adopt a resolution 

approving a Site Plan Amendment to allow for changes to the approved Site Plan including an 

addition of carport canopies, parking changes and landscape and lighting plan changes upon 

property located at 9410 S. 76th St. (Carma Laboratories, Applicant and Property Owner). On 

voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-0). 

 

2.   Dunkin Donuts, Master Sign Program. Request for approval of a Master Sign Program to 

allow for additional signage to exceed the maximum allowed established by our Unified 

Development Ordinance on property located at 5444 W. Rawson Ave (741 9003 000). 

 

Planning Intern Serna presented the Site Plan Amendment request. 

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Alderwoman Day seconded a motion to approve a resolution 

approving a Master Sign Program for the Dunkin Donuts/Baskin Robbins to allow for the 

business to exceed the maximum allowable signage on property located at 5444 W. Rawson 

Ave (Kardo Rasha, Applicant and Property Owner), with the condition that the applicant must 

submit a lighting plan attesting compliance with the lighting standards of the Unified 

Development Ordinance prior to the issuance of sign permits. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; 

motion carried (5-0-0). 

 

    F.  Adjournment  

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Specht seconded to adjourn the meeting at    

6:21 pm. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-0). 



C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of December 19, 2024 
 

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Text Amendment  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the attached ordinance 
to amend Section 15-10.0102 Membership of the Unified Development Ordinance 

Project Name:  Plan Commission Membership, remove the City Engineer 
member and in place thereof provide an alderperson to serve 
on the Plan Commission 

Project Address: City-wide 

Prepared by: City Development staff 

Action Requested: A motion to recommend approval of the attached ordinance, 
and authorize staff to amend the Plan Commission 
Administrative Procedures and Regulations if this ordinance 
is adopted 

Staff: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, Planning Manager 

 

With regard to the Plan Commission membership, the Unified Development Ordinance states: 
 
§15-10.0102 Membership 
The City Plan Commission shall consist of the Mayor who shall be its presiding officer, an 
alderman appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council who shall serve for 
one year unless the office becomes vacant, the City Engineer and four citizens, three appointed 
for three-year terms and one citizen appointed for a one-year term. In the absence of the City 
Engineer ("absence" meaning and including, but not limited to the office of City Engineer being 
vacant), the Assistant City Engineer shall serve in the membership position of the City Engineer 
on the City Plan Commission. 

 
In consideration of the offices of the City Engineer and the Assistant City Engineer currently being 
vacant, and that akin to the other City Departments and Officers working upon development matters, 
i.e., the Planning Department, the Economic Development Director, etc., the Engineering Department 
staff will be present at Plan Commission meetings involving a subject matter upon which the 
Engineering Department has provided services to provide information thereon, an amendment to the 
Plan Commission membership to be considered is as follows: 
 

§15-10.0102 Membership 
The City Plan Commission shall consist of the Mayor who shall be its presiding officer, twoan 
Aalderpersonsman appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council who shall 
serve for one year unless the office becomes vacant, the City Engineer and four citizens, three 
appointed for three-year terms and one citizen appointed for a one-year term. In the absence of 
the City Engineer ("absence" meaning and including, but not limited to the office of City 
Engineer being vacant), the Assistant City Engineer shall serve in the membership position of 
the City Engineer on the City Plan Commission. 

 

Item C.1 



 2

 
 
 
On November 6, the Common Council carried a motion to approve the filing of an application for 
a Unified Development Ordinance text amendment for An Ordinance to amend §15-10.0102 
Membership, of the Unified Development Ordinance to Change the Plan Commission Membership 
to Remove the City Engineer Member and in Place Thereof Provide an Alderperson to Serve on 
the Plan Commission, which is the ordinance being presented before the Plan Commission tonight. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

City Development Staff recommends approval of the attached ordinance to amend Section 15-
10.0102 Membership of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                                    draft 11/11/24 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-____ 
      

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §15-10.0102 MEMBERSHIP, OF THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TO CHANGE THE PLAN COMMISSION 

MEMBERSHIP TO REMOVE THE CITY ENGINEER MEMBER AND IN PLACE 
THEREOF PROVIDE AN ALDERPERSON TO SERVE ON THE PLAN COMMISSION 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, §15-10.0102 of the Unified Development Ordinance provides that the City 
Plan Commission shall consist of the Mayor who shall be its presiding officer, an alderman 
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council who shall serve for one year 
unless the office becomes vacant, the City Engineer (in the absence of the City Engineer, the 
Assistant City Engineer) and four citizens; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in consideration of the offices of the City Engineer and the Assistant City 
Engineer currently being vacant, and that akin to the other City Departments and Officers 
working upon development matters, i.e., the Planning Department, the Economic Development 
Director, etc., the Engineering Department staff will be present at Plan Commission meetings 
involving a subject matter upon which the Engineering Department has provided services to 
provide information thereon, an amendment to the Plan Commission membership to provide an 
Alderperson member in lieu of the City Engineer member has been arrived at to move the overall 
Plan Commission process forward to provide a broader range of review; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed the subject amendment, and having 
held a public hearing on the proposal on the ____ day of __________, 2024 and thereafter 
having recommended approval of such amendment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having accepted the recommendation of the Plan 
Commission and having determined that the proposed amendment will serve to further orderly 
growth and development and promote the health, safety and welfare of the Community.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: §15-10.0102 Membership, of the Unified Development Ordinance of 

the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, pertaining to 
the Plan Commission Membership, the introductory paragraph only, is 
hereby amended to read as follows [note: deletions appear in strike-through 

text; additions appear in double-underlined text; unchanged text is not highlighted]:  
 

The City Plan Commission shall consist of the Mayor who shall be its 
presiding officer, twoan Aalderpersonsman appointed by the Mayor and 
confirmed by the Common Council who shall serve for one year unless the 
office becomes vacant, the City Engineer and four citizens, three appointed  



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-____ 
Page 2 
 

for three-year terms and one citizen appointed for a one-year term. In the 
absence of the City Engineer ("absence" meaning and including, but not 
limited to the office of City Engineer being vacant), the Assistant City 
Engineer shall serve in the membership position of the City Engineer on the 
City Plan Commission.  

 
SECTION 2: The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.  Should any 

term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this 

ordinance are hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 

and publication. 

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
______ day of __________________, 2025, by Alderman ___________________________. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this ______ day of _______________________, 2025. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
            
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______    
 



C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of December 19, 2024 

 

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Text Amendment  
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the attached ordinance 

to define “DEVELOPER’S DEPOSIT” in Section 15-11.0103 Specific Words and Phrases of the 

Unified Development Ordinance 

Project Name:  Developer’s deposit definition 

Project Address: City-wide 

Prepared by: City Development staff 

Action Requested: A motion to recommend approval of the attached ordinance 

Staff: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, Planning Manager 

 

On August 6, the Common Council updated the Fee Schedule for zoning and land division 

applications (Ord. 2024-2628), including a new developer’s deposit for Planned Development 

Districts and Preliminary Plat applications as shown below: 

 

 
 

The procedure for developer’s deposits is as follows: 

• The applicant pays filing fee and developer’s deposit at the time of submittal. 

• City staff creates an escrow account for the developer’s deposit. 

• City Development staff tracks time for the following activities: preparation of review 

comments, staff report, drafting resolution and/or ordinance, correspondence with 

applicant, meetings with applicants as well as boards/commission meetings. 

• City Developments staff stops tracking time when staff informs the applicant about the 

decision of the governing body on the subject application. The developer’s deposit cannot 

be used for post-approval follow-up on conditions of approval. 

• City staff issues a refund of the deposit’s remaining balance. 

• If the developer’s deposit is depleted before a decision is made, it requires replenishment 

in the amount establish by the ordinance ($3,000). 

 

However, the Unified Development Ordinance lacks a definition of developer’s deposit, therefore 

staff prepared the attached ordinance to provide for the following definition:  

 

DEVELOPER’S DEPOSIT.  

A financial deposit to the City by an applicant to pay for administrative and consulting fees 

incurred by the City in the process and/or reviewing a proposal or application, in addition 

to the filing fee set forth in the Fee Schedule in §15-9.0401.  The deposit amount and types 

Item C.2 



 2 

of applications that require a developer’s deposit are set in the Fee Schedule. The disbursal 

of leftover developer’s deposit monies shall occur after a decision has been made on the 

application by the approving authority. The City may require replenishment of developer’s 

deposit if the monies have been depleted before a decision has been made on the 

application. 

 

The hourly rate for administrative and consulting fees shall be calculated as follows: (1) 

for in-house planners, the average of all planning staff wages plus benefits as calculated by 

the Finance Department, which rate the City may update on a yearly basis; (2) for outside 

consultants, the then applicable hourly rate as has been  set by Common Council 

Resolution.” 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

City Development Staff recommends approval of the attached ordinance to define 

“DEVELOPER’S DEPOSIT” in Section 15-11.0103 Specific Words and Phrases of the Unified 

Development Ordinance. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 

                Draft 11/22/2024    

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-____ 

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE                  

TO DEFINE “DEVELOPER’S DEPOSIT” IN SECTION 15-11.0103                      

SPECIFIC WORDS AND PHRASES 
 (CITY OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT) 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 15-11.0103 of the Unified Development Ordinance defines 

specific words and phrases; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin having applied for a text amendment to define 

“DEVELOPER’S DEPOSIT” in Section 15-11.0103 SPECIFIC WORDS AND PHRASES; 

and 

  

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed the proposed amendment to 

define “DEVELOPER’S DEPOSIT” in Section 15-11.0103 SPECIFIC WORDS AND 

PHRASES, and having held a public hearing on the proposal on the _____th day of 

___________, 20__ and thereafter having recommended approval of such amendment; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having accepted the recommendation of the Plan 

Commission and having determined that the proposed amendment is consistent with the 2025 

Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin and will serve to further 

orderly growth and development and promote the health, safety and welfare of the 

Community. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, 

Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 

   

SECTION 1: Section 15-11.0103 SPECIFIC WORDS AND PHRASES is hereby 

amended as follows: add “DEVELOPER’S DEPOSIT. A financial 

deposit to the City by an applicant to pay for administrative and 

consulting fees incurred by the City in the process and/or reviewing a 

proposal or application, in addition to the filing fee set forth in the Fee 

Schedule in §15-9.0401.  The deposit amount and types of applications 

that require a developer’s deposit are set in the Fee Schedule. The 

disbursal of leftover developer’s deposit monies shall occur after a 

decision has been made on the application by the approving authority. 

The City may require replenishment of developer’s deposit if the 

monies have been depleted before a decision has been made on the 

application. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2025-____ 

Page 2 
 

The hourly rate for administrative and consulting fees shall be 

calculated as follows: (1) for in-house planners, the average of all 

planning staff wages plus benefits as calculated by the Finance 

Department, which rate the City may update on a yearly basis; (2) for 

outside consultants, the then applicable hourly rate as has been  set by 

Common Council Resolution.” 

 

SECTION 2:  The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.  Should any 

term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain 

in full force and effect. 

 

SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

passage and publication. 

 

 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 

______ day of __________________, 2025, by Alderman ___________________________. 

 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 

Franklin this ______ day of _______________________, 2025. 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

 

             

       John R. Nelson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 

 

AYES ______ NOES ______  ABSENT ______    



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of December 19, 2024 
 

Miscellaneous, Fence installation within planting strip  
 

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval with conditions of this request 
to allow for the installation of a shed within the 30-foot Planting Strip upon Lot 16 in Block 8 of the 
Southwood East Subdivision.  

Project name: Gilewski – Fence installation within planting strip 
Property Owner: Gilewski, Dale & Abbie 
Applicant: Gilewski, Dale & Abbie 
Property Address/TKN: 4107 W. Barnwood Court / 880 0021 000  
Aldermanic District: District 4 
Zoning District: R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District 
Staff Planner: Luke Hamill, Associate Planner 
 

Project Description/Analysis  
This request is to allow for a shed within the 30 foot “Planting Strip” upon Lot 16 in Block 8 of the 
Southwood East Subdivision. The Southwood East Addition Subdivision Final Plat was approved by the 
Common Council and contains a 30 foot “Planting Strip” for all lots abutting West Ryan Road. The 
property owner is proposing to install a fence within this area and would like release of the plat 
restriction. 
 
The applicant is proposing a 6-foot hight approximately 11 feet from the rear lot line. This structure 
would encroach into the planting strip indicated on the plat. It’s worth noting that this structure would 
also encroach into the required 42-foot building setback from the Ryan Road right-of-way line.  
 
The recorded plat has a note that prohibits structures “between the highway and the setback line” (see 
below). Wisconsin Administrative Code Hy. 33.08(1) (now Trans 233) states that “provided that the 
local unit of government shall allow no variances or exceptions for platted areas abutting state trunk 
highways without prior approval of the commission”, the commission is the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation (DOT). City Development staff recommends that the applicant receive a Special 
Exception Permit from Wisconsin Department of Transportation prior to obtaining building permits. 
 
 

 

Item E.1. 



 
 

2 

 
Detail of the Southwood East plat. 
Planting strip in yellow, setback line in blue. 
 
Note that the planting strip is located on platted lots 14 through 19 while the berm is located on the Ryan 
Road right-of way. Staff acknowledges that the proposed fence would likely not be visible from Ryan 
Road. 

 
View of the berm on the north side of Ryan Road, from sidewalk looking west. 
Photograph by City Development staff. 
 
Site compliance 



 
 

3 

City Development staff visited the site on December 11 and didn’t notice any site compliance issues 
with the subject lot. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
City Development staff recommends approval of this request to allow for the installation of a fence 
within the 30-foot Planting Strip upon Lot 16 in Block 8 of the Southwood East Subdivision, subject to 
the condition in the draft resolution.  



Draft 12-10-2024 

STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                          

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A FENCE  
WITHIN THE 30 FOOT PRIVATE PLANT SCREENING PLAT RESTRICTION, UPON  

LOT 16 IN BLOCK 8 OF THE SOUTHWOOD EAST SUBDIVISION 
(3651 WEST SHERWOOD AVENUE) 

(DALE & ABBIE GILEWSKI, APPLICANT) 
              
 
 WHEREAS, the Southwood East Subdivision Plat prohibits the building of structures 
within the 30 foot “Private Plant Screening” described thereon; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Dale and Abbie Gilewski having applied for a release of the 30 foot 
“Private Plant Screening” easement restriction upon their property to the extent necessary to 
install a fence within the restricted area upon the property located at 3651 W Sherwood 
Avenue, such property being zoned R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District, bearing 
Tax Key No. 879-0275-000, is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lot 16, in Block 8, in SOUTHWOOD EAST, being a subdivision of the 
Southeast 1/4 and the Southwest 1/4 of Section 24, Township 5 North, Range 
21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the 30 foot “Private Plant Screening” easement restriction upon the Final 
Plat for Southwood East Subdivision and its accompanying restriction of the building of 
structures is a restriction which was imposed by the Franklin Common Council in its 
approval of the Final Plat; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Wis. Stats. § 236.293 provides in part that any restriction placed on 
platted land by covenant, grant of easement or in any other manner, which was required by a 
public body vests in the public body the right to enforce the restriction at law or in equity and 
that the restriction may be released or waived in writing by the public body having the right 
of enforcement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the request for the release of 
the 30 foot “Private Plant Screening” easement restriction only so as to allow for the subject 
fence installation, and having considered the proposed location of and type of fence to be 
installed upon the subject property in conjunction with existing and required landscaping on 
the property, and that the proposed fence will not be readily visible from the adjoining 
highway or create any adverse impact upon the aesthetic or buffering purposes of the 
landscape bufferyard. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the installation of proposed fence of the type and 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-____ 
Page 2 
 
specifications as described and only upon the location as set forth within the plans 
accompanying the application of Dale and Abbie Gilewski filed on November 19, 2024 be 
and the same is hereby authorized and approved and that the “Private Plant Screening” 
easement restriction as it would otherwise apply to such installation upon the subject 
property only, is hereby waived and released, with the following additional condition: 
 

1. The applicant must receive a Special Exception Permit from the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation for the fence installation prior to obtaining building 
permits. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the applicant shall further obtain all required 

permit(s) for the installation of the subject fence and that the subject fence shall be installed 
pursuant to such permit(s) within one year of the date hereof, or all approvals granted 
hereunder shall be null and void. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same are hereby 
directed to obtain the recording of this Resolution with the Office of the Register of Deeds 
for Milwaukee County. 
  
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2025. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2025. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



1 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Date: December 5, 2024 
To: Dale & Abbie Gilewski 
From: Department of City Development. Luke Hamill, Associate Planner. 
RE: Staff Comments, 3651 W Sherwood Drive / 879 0275 000 
 
 
Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application resubmitted on 
November 19, 2024, for a request to release the plat restriction for the installation of a 
fence within the private planting screen on lot located at 3651 W Sherwood Drive / 879 
0275 000. The following comments are for your review and consideration. 
 

City Development Comments 

This application is scheduled for the December 19th Plan Commission Meeting and the January 7th 
Common Council Meeting. 

 

Please provide 11 copies of the application materials (Application, Project Narrative, Survey) to 
the Department of City Development by 4:30 PM on Monday, December 9, 2024. 

 

Wisconsin Department of Transportation Comments 

On the subdivision plat for your property, there is a 42-foot Highway Building Setback (screenshot 
below), which prohibits certain structures from being installed within that setback without a 
Special Exception from Wisconsin DOT. Please see this email from Jorge Salazar-Oyarce attached 
with this email. 

We will add receiving the Special Exception from WisDOT as a Condition of Approval in the final 
resolution. Please Contact Mr. Salazar-Oyarce for more information about their special exception 
process. 



2 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

 





Legal Description 

Southwood East, Block 18, Lot 16 



Project Narrative (Email from Mr. Gilewski) 

We are fencing from the house down the side lot lines and stoping at 30’ from the rear lot line due to 
the easement. (Which is where the appeal is coming in) I would wish to finish the 19 feet of the sides to 
finish BEHIND my shed that is already there and stands 11 feet from my rear lot line. And then going 
east to west finish my rear (south) fence 11 feet from lot line to meet up with the other side fence while 
finishing that side also another 19 feet so all matches up at 11 feet from rear lot line. The picture below 
you will see the original quote from fencing company and my plans. We cooperating with the red lines I 
drew that will stop 30’ from rear then finish with this appeal which will leave the rear fence behind my 
shed and 11 feet from lot line. Let me know if you need anything else or other questions please. I’m only 
asking for me to be able to fence behind my shed so that structure is in the yard and not fenced out. The 
rear side (south) end will be 11 feet from the lot line. Thank you.  

 



Just directly behind me shed and straight across. My shed is the little black block structure you see on 
bottom right of picture  

 































 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of December 19, 2024 
 

Miscellaneous, Shed installation within planting strip  
 

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval of this request to allow for the 
installation of a shed within the 30-foot Planting Strip upon Lot 2 of the Southwood East Addition No. 
2 Subdivision.  

Project name: Anhalt –shed installation within planting strip 
Property Owner: Anhalt, Mark and Sheryl 
Applicant: Anhalt, Mark 
Property Address/TKN: 4107 W. Barnwood Court / 880 0021 000 
Aldermanic District: District 4 
Zoning District: R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District 
Staff Planner: Luke Hamill, Associate Planner 
 

Project Description/Analysis  
This request is to allow for a shed within the 30 foot “Planting Strip” upon Lot 2 in Southwood East 
Addition No. 2 Subdivision. The Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision Final Plat was approved 
by the Common Council on March 3, 1987 by Resolution No. 87-2848 and contains a 30 foot “Planting 
Strip” for all lots abutting West Ryan Road. The property owner is proposing to install a a shed within 
this area and would like release of the plat restriction. 
 
The applicant is proposing a shed (10 ft by 10 ft) approximately 10 feet from the rear lot line. This 
structure would encroach into the planting strip indicated on the plat. It’s worth noting that this structure 
would also encroach into the required 42-foot building setback from the Ryan Road right-of-way line.  
 
The recorded plat has a note that prohibits structures “between the highway and the setback line” (see 
below). Wisconsin Administrative Code Hy. 33.08(1) (now Trans 233) states that “provided that the 
local unit of government shall allow no variances or exceptions for platted areas abutting state trunk 
highways without prior approval of the commission”, the commission is the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation (DOT). However, sheds without a permanent foundation are not subject to this Highway 
Setback Line determination. Therefore, the shed does not require special permitting and is allowed within 
the 42-foot setback. 
 

 
 
The Subdivision Development Agreement for Southwood East Addition No. 2 required that the City 
Engineer approve the design of the planting screen. 
 

 

Item E.2. 



 
 

2 

 
Detail of the Southwood East Add. No. 2 plat. 
Planting strip in green, setback line in red. 
 
Note that the planting strip is located on platted lots 1 through 9 while the berm is located on the Ryan 
Road right-of way. The white fence in the picture below is located near the right-of-way line. Staff 
acknowledges that the proposed shed would likely not be visible from Ryan Road. 

 
View of the berm on the north side of Ryan Road, from sidewalk looking west. 
Photograph by City Development staff. 
Site compliance 
City Development staff visited the site on December 11 and didn’t notice any site compliance issues 
with the subject lot. 
Staff Recommendation: 
City Development staff recommends approval of this request to allow for the installation of a shed within 
the 30-foot Planting Strip upon Lot 2 of the Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision.  



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                         [Draft 12-10-24] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A SHED  
WITHIN THE 30 FOOT PLANTING STRIP PLAT RESTRICTION, UPON  

LOT 2 IN SOUTHWOOD EAST ADDITION NO. 2 SUBDIVISION 
(4107 WEST BARNWOOD COURT) 

(MARK ANHALT, APPLICANT) 
              
 
 WHEREAS, the Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision Plat prohibits the 
building of structures within the 30 foot “Planting Strip” described thereon; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mark Anhalt having applied for a release of the 30 foot “Planting Strip” 
easement restriction upon their property to the extent necessary to install a shed 10 feet from 
the south line of the property which abuts West Ryan Road and within the restricted area 
upon the property located at 4107 West Barnwood Court, such property being zoned R-6 
Suburban Single-Family Residence District, bearing Tax Key No. 880-0028-000, is more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

Lot 2, in Block 22, in SOUTHWOOD EAST ADDITION NO. 2, being a 
subdivision of a part of the Southwest 1/4 and the Southeast 1/4 of the 
Southwest 1/4 of Section 24, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of 
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the 30 foot “Planting Strip” easement restriction upon the Final Plat for 
Southwood East Addition No. 2 Subdivision and its accompanying restriction of the building 
of structures is a restriction which was imposed by the Franklin Common Council in its 
approval of the Final Plat; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Wis. Stats. § 236.293 provides in part that any restriction placed on 
platted land by covenant, grant of easement or in any other manner, which was required by a 
public body vests in the public body the right to enforce the restriction at law or in equity and 
that the restriction may be released or waived in writing by the public body having the right 
of enforcement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the request for the release of 
the 30 foot “Planting Strip” easement restriction only so as to allow for the subject shed 
installation, and having considered the proposed location of and type of shed to be installed 
upon the subject property in conjunction with existing and required landscaping on the 
property, and that the proposed shed will not be readily visible from the adjoining highway 
or create any adverse impact upon the aesthetic or buffering purposes of the landscape 
bufferyard. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-____ 
Page 2 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the installation of proposed fence of the type and 
specifications as described and only upon the location as set forth within the plans 
accompanying the application of Mark Anhalt filed on November 20, 2024, be and the same 
is hereby authorized and approved and that the “Planting Strip” easement restriction as it 
would otherwise apply to such installation upon the subject property only, is hereby waived 
and released. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the applicant shall further obtain all required 
permit(s) for the installation of the subject fence and that the subject fence shall be installed 
pursuant to such permit(s) within one year of the date hereof, or all approvals granted 
hereunder shall be null and void. 
 
 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same are hereby 
directed to obtain the recording of this Resolution with the Office of the Register of Deeds 
for Milwaukee County. 
  
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2025. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2025. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



1 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Date: December 5, 2024 
To: Mark & Sheryl Anhalt 
From: Department of City Development. Luke Hamill, Associate Planner. 
RE: Staff Comments, 4107 W Barnwood Court / 880 0021 000 
 
 
Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application resubmitted on 
November 20, 2024, for a request to release the plat restriction for the installation of a 
shed on lot located at 4107 W Barnwood Court / 880 0021 000. The following comments 
are for your review and consideration. 
 

City Development Comments 

This application is scheduled for the December 19th Plan Commission Meeting and the January 7th 
Common Council Meeting. 

 

Please provide 11 copies of the application materials (Application, Project Narrative, Special 
Exception Permit, Survey) to the Department of City Development by 4:30 PM on Monday, 
December 9, 2024. 





 

   



 



Project NarraƟve – 4107 W. Barnwood Court, Franklin, WI 

 

ApplicaƟon for Release 

I am applying for a release of the planƟng strip restricƟon so I can place a fence at the back of my property at 4107 W. 

Barnwood Court.  This fence would adjoin the pre-exiƟng fences of my neighbors at 4101 and 4113 W. Barnwood Court 

(both neighbors have already signed release forms allowing me to aƩach my proposed fence to theirs at the back of my 

property. 

AddiƟonally, I am requesƟng permission to place a 10’ x 10’ shed in the southwest corner of my property, to be placed at 

least 8’ from my neighbors (4113) property line to the west of my property, and at least 8’ from the rear of my 

property/the “planƟng strip”. 

 

 

Key reasons for wanƟng to place a fence in my backyard include: 

 With crime moving out from the city, a fence would a least slow down anyone aƩempƟng to access my property 

from Ryan Road. 

 As I also wish to place a shed and a garden in my backyard, a fence would slow down potenƟal vandals as well as 

wildlife which could damage my garden and/or shed. 

   



Key reasons for wanƟng to place a shed in my backyard include: 

 To make more room in my garage for vehicles by removing equipment (lawn mower, snowblower, rotoƟller, air 

compressor, bicycles, etc.), tools (shovels, rakes, lawn roller, etc.) and other miscellaneous non-automoƟve items 

(ex., bags of lawn ferƟlizer, mulch, etc.) 

 Once removed from my garage, I will need an enclosed, lockable shed to protect the equipment and tools 

detailed above. 

Specific plans for the fence and shed. 

 Current plans for the fence will be to install a 6’ high wood fence, very similar to the fences already installed on 

the adjacent properƟes to the East and West of my property.  This fence will only be placed at the rear of my 

property.  I have no current plans to construct or adjoin my neighbor’s fences near the front of my property. 

o If available at a reasonable price, I may also consider a 6’ high wood “like” fence made from weather 

resistant materials to decrease the need for maintenance. 

 Current plans are to have constructed on sight a 10’ x 10” wooden sided shed.  This shed will be painted to 

match the front siding of my home at 4107 W. Barnwood Court. 

 

PlanƟng Strip/Berm 

Finally, I would like to menƟon…the “planƟng strip”/berm has been in place for approximately 20 years, and there has 

been absolutely zero (0) maintenance of this strip during this Ɵme. (see picture below).  In fact, it is currently overgrown 

with weeds and poplar trees. The City of Franklin iniƟally promised a wall, similar to what was placed on the properƟes 

adjacent to Rawson Road when that road was widened, but that obviously never happened. 

 

   



I had originally (prior to the widening of Ryan Road) planted 30+ arborvitaes along the back of my property (see pictures 

below) to act as a fence of sorts, which at the Ɵme the berm was constructed were each 4’ to 6” high.  However, when 

the berm was constructed, the city saw fit to cut down most of my arborvitae across the back of my lot, which a city 

representaƟve later admiƩed was “probably unnecessary”.  The other picture below shows the two remaining arborvitae 

which were not cut down.  As you can see in relaƟon to my neighbor’s fence (to the East), these arborvitaes are now 

between 15’ – 20” tall.  If all my arborvitae had been leŌ in place, this would have greatly reduced (but not eliminated) 

any need or desire for a fence at the rear of my property. 

          



Finally, it is clear from the “Plat of Survey” both of my neighbor’s fences lie well within the planƟng strip and building 

setback line as established in 1989 (long before either fence or shed were contructed).  Since both neighbors were given 

permits to place their fences aŌer the 1989 Plat of Survey, and my neighbor to the West was also given a permit for a 

wood shed structure, it makes liƩle sense to me to have my request for a release from the planƟng strip restricƟon to 

erect a fence and shed of my own. 

 



1

Luke Hamill

From: mganhalt@wi.rr.com
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2024 11:56 AM
To: Luke Hamill
Subject: FW: Special Exception Request Form | 4107 Barnwood Ct, Franklin | WIS 100

Luke; 
 
Below is the email I mentioned to you….the one I received from WI DOT 
 

Mark Anhalt 
4107 W. Barnwood Court, Franklin, WI 53132 
mganhalt@wi.rr.com 
414‐218‐9231 
Ora et labora 
 
 
 

From: Salazar‐Oyarce, Jorge ‐ DOT <jorge.salazaroyarce@dot.wi.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 9, 2024 11:14 AM 
To: mganhalt@wi.rr.com 
Cc: Elkin, Robert ‐ DOT <Robert.Elkin@dot.wi.gov> 
Subject: RE: Special Exception Request Form | 4107 Barnwood Ct, Franklin | WIS 100 
 
Mark, 
 
You will need the special exception for the fence only, moveable sheds without pads or footings do not need an special 
exception. Please re‐write the form, clarifying that the request is for the fence and not the moveable shed. 
 
Thanks. 
 

From: mganhalt@wi.rr.com <mganhalt@wi.rr.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, October 8, 2024 12:13 PM 
To: Erickson, Kolin A ‐ DOT <kolin.erickson@dot.wi.gov> 
Cc: Salazar‐Oyarce, Jorge ‐ DOT <jorge.salazaroyarce@dot.wi.gov> 
Subject: RE: Special Exception Request Form | 4107 Barnwood Ct, Franklin | WIS 100 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization.  
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Kolin & Jorge: 
 
Just following up on the information I sent you on 9/26 in an effort to get permission to build a small shed in my 
backyard.  I would love to get the shed in place before the snow flies if at all possible, so please let me know if need any 
additional information to provide the permission I need to move forward. 



2

 
Sincerely, 
 

Mark Anhalt 
4107 W. Barnwood Court, Franklin, WI 53132 
mganhalt@wi.rr.com 
414‐218‐9231 
Ora et labora 
 
 
 

From: mganhalt@wi.rr.com <mganhalt@wi.rr.com>  
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 2:03 PM 
To: 'Erickson, Kolin A ‐ DOT' <kolin.erickson@dot.wi.gov> 
Cc: 'Salazar‐Oyarce, Jorge ‐ DOT' <jorge.salazaroyarce@dot.wi.gov> 
Subject: RE: Special Exception Request Form | 4107 Barnwood Ct, Franklin | WIS 100 
 
Kolin & Jorge: 
 
Attached you will find the completed Special Exception Request Form to request permission to place a shed in my 
backyard.  I’ve attached additional information as requested. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or if you need any additional information. 
 
 

Mark Anhalt 
4107 W. Barnwood Court 
Franklin, WI 53132 
mganhalt@wi.rr.com 
414‐218‐9231 
Ora et labora 
 
 
 
 

From: Erickson, Kolin A ‐ DOT <kolin.erickson@dot.wi.gov>  
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2024 12:57 PM 
To: mganhalt@wi.rr.com 
Cc: Salazar‐Oyarce, Jorge ‐ DOT <jorge.salazaroyarce@dot.wi.gov> 
Subject: Special Exception Request Form | 4107 Barnwood Ct, Franklin | WIS 100 
 
Mark, 
 
Following up with you from our phone call earlier today. 
 
Please see attached special exception request form to consider placement of a structure (in this case a storage shed) 
within the subdivision setback area of your property from WIS 100/Ryan Rd. 
 
Complete this form and submit to our Subdivision Plat Reviewer (Jorge Salazar‐Oyarce) who is cc’d above. He may also 
be reached at 262.548.5695 if you have questions. 
 



3

For more information on Special Exceptions, please visit: 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation Subdivisions abutting the state highway system (wisconsindot.gov) 
 
Thank you, 
 

 

Kolin Erickson 
Planning & Access Management – SE Region 

Division of Transportation System Development 

Wisconsin Department of Transportation 

(262) 548‐5882 office 

kolin.erickson@dot.wi.gov 

wisconsindot.gov 

            

 
 






	1 2024-1219 Plan Commission Agenda
	2 2024-1205 PC Minutes - Draft
	Item C1 Plan Commission Membership
	1 Staff Report - Plan Commission Membership 11-20-24
	2 ORD Plan Commission membership amend UDO §15-10.0102 111124

	Item C2 Developers Deposit
	1 Staff Report - Developer's deposit 11-22-24
	2 ORD Developer's Deposit Definition UDO TA 11-22-24

	Item E.1 - Gilewski Miscellaneous - 6575 W River Pointe Drive
	01 PC Staff Report - Gilewski
	02 RES - Gilewski fence release of restrict (12-10-2024)
	03 2024-12-5 Staff Comments - Misc. - Release of Plat Restriction - 3651 W Sherwood Drive
	04 Application
	05 Legal Description
	06 Project Narrative
	Additional Submittal

	Item E.2 - Anhalt Miscellaneous - 4107 W Barnwood Court
	01 PC Staff Report - Anhalt
	02 RES - Anhalt shed release of restrict (12-10-24)
	03 2024-12-5 Staff Comments - Misc. - Release of Plat Restriction - 4107 W Barnwood Court
	04 Application
	05 Property Description 4107 W. Barnwood Court
	06 Property Narrative - 4107 W. Barnwood Court
	07 DOT Shed
	08 Special Exception Permit for Highway Setback - MGA 11192024
	09 Survey


